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In this historical overview, we chronicle the programs, 
people, facilities, and accomplishments that have 
contributed significantly to the success of rangeland 
extension, research, and teaching in the University of 

California (UC). 

The Early Years
In 1868 UC, located in Berkeley, was chartered as California’s 
land-grant university with the College of Agriculture being 
the first department. In 1875 the UC Agricultural Experi-
ment Station, authorized by the Hatch Act, was established. 
In 1901 the Animal Science Division was started at UC 
Berkeley, followed by the Agronomy Division in 1904. In 
1906 the University Farm was purchased in Davis. By 1909 
the Animal Science and Agronomy divisions moved from 
Berkeley to Davis. The first students at Davis were enrolled 
in 1908 for short courses that emphasized technical training. 
In 1922 Arthur W. Sampson joined UC Berkeley as a lec-
turer in the School of Forestry and as the first “range” faculty.

In 1915 California established the Agricultural Extension 
Service in response to the passage of the Smith-Lever Act in 
1914, and authorized the County Boards of Supervisors to 
expend funds to support county extension offices and staff. 
The first Cooperative Extension director, B. H. Crocheron, 
required that an organized agriculture group be established 
in the county before a farm advisor (county agent) would be 
placed there.1–3 In 1913 Humboldt County formed the first 
county farm bureau and established the first extension office 
in California, followed by Yolo, San Joaquin, and San Diego 
counties. In 1919 the California Farm Bureau Federation was 
formed and took over the establishment of the county farm 
bureaus. More than 150 extension specialists and farm advi-
sors have conducted range research and extension programs 
throughout California since 1913.

Improving rangelands by controlling weeds and brush, 
seeding, fertilization and grazing management has been a 
continuing theme of research by UC since the late 1800s. In 
1878 Dr Eugene W. Hilgard, Professor of Agriculture and 
Agricultural Chemistry, and Dr Edward J. Wickson, Pro-
fessor of Horticulture in the College of Agriculture at UC 
Berkeley, received seeds of a bunchgrass, smilograss (Ory-
zopsis milliacea), from an experimental grass garden in New 
Zealand. In 1879–1880 they sent seed of this Asian native 
grass to farmers for range trials in several parts of California.4 
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On the Ground
•	 The Agricultural Extension Service at the Univer-

sity of California (UC) was established in Hum-
boldt County in 1913 preceding the nationwide 
establishment of the extension service in 1914.

•	 Improving rangelands by controlling weeds and 
brush, seeding, fertilization, and grazing manage-
ment has been a continuing theme of research by 
UC since the late 1800s. 

•	 Restoration of annual-dominated grasslands with 
native perennials has been a recurring research 
theme that continues to challenge grassland re-
searchers.

•	 The complexity of research questions and educa-
tion programs increased when environmental is-
sues including grazing effects on riparian areas, 
oak regeneration, wildlife habitat, and water qual-
ity began to influence range research and exten-
sion programs in the 1980s. 

•	 A more diversified range extension audience 
evolved with the increase in small farms and 
ranches and diversification of agency staff in re-
sponse to affirmative action. 
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